
 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION – REGULAR MEETING 
April 28, 2025 6:30 PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC REMARKS 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. April 14, 2025 

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. None 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. None 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. SUP #25007 – Mister Car Wash Major SUP Amendment 
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. Off-Street Parking – Sec. 86-758 – Landscaping discussion 

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Township Board update 
B. Liaison reports 

 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

12. PUBLIC REMARKS 

13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



AGENDA page 2 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

April 28, 2025 6:30 PM 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
May 12, 2025 

  
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. None 
 

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Off-Street Parking – Sec. 86-758 – Landscaping discussion 
 

3. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None 



Page 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING PLANNING COMMISSION  
5000 Okemos Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Central Fire Station-Community Room 
Monday, April 14, 2025, 6:30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Chair Shrewsbury, Vice Chair Snyder, Commissioners Brooks, McConnell, McCurtis, 

and Romback. 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: Principal Planner Shorkey 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Chair Shrewsbury called the April 14, 2025, regular meeting for the Meridian Township 
Planning Commission to order at 6:31 pm.  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Chair Shrewsbury called the roll of the Board. All Board members were present except for 
Commissioner Romback. 
 

3. PUBLIC REMARKS 
 
None 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Shrewsbury asked for approval of the agenda.  
 
Commissioner McConnell moved to approve the April 14, 2025, Regular Planning 
Commission meeting agenda. Seconded by Commissioner McCurtis. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Romback arrived at 6:33. 
 
Chair Shrewsbury asked for approval of the minutes. Commissioner McConnell noted two 
corrections to be made. Commissioner Brooks noted one correction to be made. 
 
Commissioner Romback moved to approve Minutes of the March 24, 2025 meeting with 
minor amendments. Seconded by Commissioner Brooks. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Angela Wilson Re: SUP #25007 (Email)  
B. Mary Ann Martin Re: SUP #25007 (Email)  
C. Eryn McDonald Re: SUP #25007 (Email)  



Page 2 

D. Cheryl So Re: SUP #25007 (Email)  
E. Albert Maywood Re: SUP #25007 (Email)  
F. Elizabeth McKeon Re: SUP #25007 (Email)  
G. Roger Zverina Re: SUP #25007 (Email)  
H. Candy Parker Re: SUP #25007 (Email) 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. SUP #25007 – Mister Car Wash Major SUP Amendment 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey gave an overview of the Special Use Permit process and briefed 
the Commission on the application. 
 
Chair Shrewsbury opened public hearing at 6:37pm. 
 
Commissioners asked for information about the parcels, proposed layout, timeline for work 
to occur, modifications from the previous SUP. Principal Planner Shorkey provided 
clarification, deferring to the applicant for specific questions. 
 
Representatives for the applicant explained the proposed layout, traffic flow, modifications 
from the previous SUP, and timeline for work.  They also addressed concerns posed in the 
communications section of the packet and clarified Commissioner questions about the 
chemicals used in the carwash. 
 
Chair Shrewsbury closed public hearing at 7:30 pm. 
 
Commissioners indicated via straw poll that they would likely support the permit. 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
A. SUP #25006 – Precious Sprouts Group Child Care 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey gave an overview of the process that has occurred to date. 
 
Commissioner McConnell moved to adopt the resolution approving Special Use 
Permit #25006 to establish a group child care home for up to fourteen children at 
2137 Butternut Drive.  Supported by Vice Chair Snyder.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
B. ZA #25002 – Sec. 6-755 – Schedule of Requirements for Parking Space 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey gave an overview of the process that has occurred to date. 
 
Vice Chair Snyder moved to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Zoning 
Amendment #25002 in accordance with the revised draft ordinance language.  
Supported by Commissioner McConnell.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
9. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
None 
 

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. Township Board Update 



Page 3 

 
Principal Planner Shorkey stated that the Board approved REZ 2025-03 at the previous 
Board meeting, will be considering the appointment of a new Commissioner to the Planning 
commission, and will be reviewing SUP #25-03 at the upcoming Board meeting. 
 

B. Liaison Reports 
 
Commissioner McConnell attended the Environmental Commission meeting. 

 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

 
None 

 
12. PUBLIC REMARKS 

 
None 
 

13. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
Commissioners discussed the guidance Township ordinances provide for considering 
environmental impacts of projects in context of the standard that the project will not adversely 
affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses.  The Planning Commission also discussed 
development pressures and how to incentivize specific types of developments. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Shrewsbury called for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:17 pm 
 
Commissioner McConnell moved to adjourn the April 14, 2025 regular meeting of the 
Planning Commission. Seconded by Commissioner Brooks. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Keith Chapman, Associate Planner 
 
Date:  April 23, 2025 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh Road) – Mister Car Wash, to construct 

a drive-through car wash at 4880 Marsh Road. 
 
CWP West, LLC (Applicant) has submitted a Special Use Permit (SUP) application for the 
construction of a 4,887 square foot drive-through car wash with 24 vacuum stations at 4880 Marsh 
Road. The property currently contains a former restaurant which is being proposed to be torn down 
and replaced with the proposed car wash.  
 
A public hearing for this application was held at the Planning Commission’s regular meeting on 
Monday, April 14, 2025, during which the Planning Commission indicated support for the 
application.  
 
Staff would recommend approval of the proposed Special Use Permit for the construction of a 
drive-through car wash at the Subject Property.   
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  A 
resolution to approve the request is provided. If the Planning Commission wishes to approve the 
special use permit, Staff suggests the following motion: 
 
Move to adopt the attached resolution approving Special Use Permit #25007, a request to 
construct a drive-through car wash at 4880 Marsh Road. 
 
Attachments:   
1. Resolution recommending approval of the rezoning 
2. Staff report and attached materials from the public hearing, dated April 9, 2025 
3. Email from applicant 
   
 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE   Special Use Permit #25007  
 (4880 Marsh Road) 
 Mister Car Wash 
  

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 28th 
day of April, 2025 at 6:30 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:____________________________________________________________________________          

________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:    ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The following resolution was offered by ___________ and supported by __________. 
 

WHEREAS, CWP West, LLC requested a special use permit (SUP #25007) to construct a 
drive-through car wash at 4880 Marsh Road; and 
 

WHEREAS, drive-through car wash facilities are an allowed use in the C-3 (Commercial) 
district subject to special use permit approval; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held the public hearing for Special Use Permit #25007 
at its meeting on April 14, 2025 and discussed on April 28, 2025, and has reviewed the staff 
material forwarded under a cover memorandum dated April 9, 2025 and April 23, 2025; and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposed drive-through car wash facility is consistent with the general 
standards for the granting of a special use permit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the site is served by public water and sanitary sewer. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves Special Use Permit #23005 subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. Approval is granted in accordance with the application materials submitted by the applicant 

dated. 
 

2. The applicant shall obtain any required building permits from the Building Department. 
 

3. The applicant shall obtain any and all other applicable permits, licenses, and approvals 
necessary to construct the new car wash. Copies of all permits, licenses, and approvals shall 
be submitted to the Department of Community Planning and Development prior to site plan 
approval. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution to Approve 
SUP #25007 (4880 Marsh Road) 
Page 2 
 
 

ADOPTED:  
 
YEAS:  _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
ABSENT: _________________________________ 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss  
COUNTY OF INGHAM )  
 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Chairperson of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 28th day of April, 2025. 
 
 
       _________________________________   
       Alisande Shrewsbury 
       Planning Commission Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Keith Chapman, Associate Planner 
 
Date:  April 9, 2025 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh Road) – Mister Car Wash, construct a 

drive-through car wash at 4880 Marsh Road. 
 
 
CWP West, LLC has requested an amendment to a special use permit (SUP) to construct a 4,887 
square foot drive-through car wash with 24 vacuum stations at 4880 Marsh Road.  The 2.92-acre 
subject site is zoned C-3 (Commercial). Drive through car wash facilities are permitted by special 
use permit in the C-3 (Commercial) zoning district. On March 13, 2023 a special use permit was 
granted to allow for a 3,690 square foot drive through car wash and 28 vacuum stations.  The 
applicant intends to demolish the existing 9,542 square foot building currently on site. 
 

LOCATION MAP 
 

 
 



 
Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh)  
Planning Commission (April 14, 2025) 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Master Plan 
 
The Future Land Use Map from the 2023 Master Plan designates the subject property in the 
Commercial core category.  The proposed use is consistent with the future land use Commercial core 
category.  
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 
 
 
 
Zoning 
 
Drive-through car wash facilities are allowed by special use permit in the C-3 zoning district.  The 
subject site is zoned C-3 (Commercial) which requires a minimum of 100 feet of lot frontage and 
10,000 square feet of lot area. The subject site has 299.5 feet of lot frontage along Marsh Road and 
285.43 feet of lot frontage along Newman Road and has 127,195.2 square feet, or 2.92 acre, of lot 
area.   
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh)  
Planning Commission (April 14, 2025) 
Page 3 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

ZONING MAP 
 

 
 
Physical Features 
 
The approximate 2.92-acre site is L-shaped and located at the corner of Marsh Road and Newman 
Road. Currently, the site is developed with a 9,542 square foot building constructed in 2006. The 
building previously contained Outback Steakhouse. The site does not have any special designation 
on the Township Greenspace Plan and is not located in a floodplain or near any wetlands.   
 
Streets and Traffic 
 
The site is located on the east side of Marsh Road, North of Newman Road.  Access to the site is 
provided on Marsh and Newman. A seven-foot-wide pathway is installed along Marsh Road and 
Newman Road. 
 
Marsh Road has four lanes and a center turn lane with curb and gutter installed.  It is classified as a 
Principal Arterial Street, which requires a setback of 100 feet from the centerline of the right-of-
way.  Newman Road has two lanes and a center turn lane with curb and gutter. It is classified as a 
collector street and requires an 85’ setback from the centerline of the street right-of-way. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh)  
Planning Commission (April 14, 2025) 
Page 4 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

The applicant submitted a trip generation analysis which estimates future vehicle trips that could 
be generated by the proposed development.  The Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) trip 
generation rates for a Tunnel Automated Car Wash (Land Use Code 948) was selected to represent 
the proposed development. The manual only includes traffic counts for PM Peak Hour and Saturday 
midday peak hour and does not include a weekday total. The following table summarizes findings 
from the submitted trip generation analysis. 
 

Description PM Peak Hour Saturday Midday Peak 
Hour 

In Out Total In Out Total 
Tunnel Automated 
Car Wash, Code 948 39 39 78 19 22 41 

  
A traffic assessment is required for new special uses which could generate between 50 and 249 
directional trips during morning and afternoon peak hours of traffic.  A traffic impact study is 
required for new special uses which would generate over 250 directional trips during morning and 
afternoon peak hours of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day.  An average day is the average 
24-hour total of all vehicle trips counted to and from a study site from Monday through Friday. Key 
findings of the submitted study include: 
 
Under build conditions, the proposed development is projected to generate 78 total trips during the 
P.M. peak hour (39 in / 39 out) and 41 total trips during the Saturday peak hour of generation (19 
in / 22 out). The proposed development is projected to generate 6 fewer total trips during the PM 
peak hour and 63 fewer total trips during the Saturday peak hour of generation than the former land 
use, a recently closed Outback Steakhouse. 
 
•  Marsh Road and Site Driveway 

⮚  Based on the right turn lane guidelines for four-lane roadways contained in National 
Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) Report 279, a northbound right turn 
lane would not be required on Marsh Road to serve the site. 

 
•  Newman Road and Middle Site Driveway 

⮚  Based on the right turn lane guidelines for two-lane roadways contained in NCHRP Report 
279, a westbound right turn lane would not be required on Newman Road to serve the 
site. 

 
The existing site access is adequate to serve the proposed Mister Car Wash development. 
 
Utilities 
 
The site is served by public water and sanitary sewer and the existing system can serve the new 
proposed use.  
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh)  
Planning Commission (April 14, 2025) 
Page 5 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Staff Analysis 
 
The existing building will be demolished and a new parking lot along with landscaping will be added 
to the site. The proposed drive-through car wash will be one car lane wide. There are 28 vacuums 
proposed to be located on the property. Direct pedestrian access from the building to the sidewalk 
is required by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances, the general special use permit criteria, should be used by 
the Planning Commission in considering the proposed request, which are as follows: 
 

1. The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter. 
 
The Commercial district allows for commercial buildings. The proposed development is 
well within the intent and purpose of this zoning district.   

 
2. The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's 

comprehensive development plan of current adoption. 
 
The proposal meets, Promote infill development along main vehicular corridors in the 
Township, reusing existing developed land for new uses. 

 
3. The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and 

appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity 
and that such a use will not change the essential character of the same area. 
 
The proposed car wash is proposed to be constructed in a manner that is harmonious to 
the surrounding commercial buildings. 

 
4. The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. 

 
The proposed car wash will not adversely affect the surrounding uses. This is a main 
commercial corridor and there are other commercial structures surrounding the 
property.  

 
5. The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or 

the community. 
 
The building is similar to other surrounding buildings and will not be detrimental to the 
economic welfare of surrounding properties or community. 

 
6. The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, 

stormwater drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that 
the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able 
to provide any such service. 
 



 
Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh)  
Planning Commission (April 14, 2025) 
Page 6 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

The project is adequately served by roads, utilities, and other such public services that 
will be needed by the project. 

 
7. The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site 

sanitation facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and stormwater are 
proposed, they shall be properly designed and capable of handling the long-term needs of 
the proposed project. 
 
Public sanitation facilities are adequate for the project, as are public water facilities.  
 

8. The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general 
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. 
 
The Zoning Ordinance states no noise exceeding 70 dBA shall be emitted, as measured 
from a property line. The applicant will be required to demonstrate noise levels for the 
site will not exceed 70 dBA. Staff’s experience from similar uses indicates the site should 
easily meet this standard. 

 
There are four specific standards for drive-through car washes in the C-3 zoning district noted in 
Section 86-405(e)(13)(c) of the Code of Ordinances, which are as follows: 
 

1. In self-service car washes, no equipment, such as a vacuum cleaner, shall be located in the front 
yard. 
 
This building is a drive through car wash so this is not applicable.  

 
2. Buildings shall be set back a minimum of 500 feet from an abutting residential district. 

 
There are no residential districts nearby. 

 
3. Storage of flammable products. Outside aboveground tanks for the storage of gasoline, oil or 

other flammable liquids or gases, other than liquid petroleum gas, for sale shall be prohibited. 
 
There is no indication of any hazardous materials storage provided by the applicant. The 
applicant should confirm this going forward. 

 
4. Car washes, including self-service types, shall not be allowed to operate so as to adversely affect 

the adjacent residential properties and surrounding area. 
 
There are no residential properties nearby and the car wash will not negatively impact 
surrounding commercial uses. 

 
The Planning Commission has the ability to place conditions on the SUP to ensure there are no 
conflicts between the drive-through car wash and adjacent residences or businesses. If the Planning 



 
Special Use Permit #25007 (4880 Marsh)  
Planning Commission (April 14, 2025) 
Page 7 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Commission chooses to impose conditions, they should be specific in how the condition is 
addressing a potential conflict. 
 
In reviewing the proposed Special Use Permit Staff has identified no major concerns that would 
negatively impact surrounding properties or the Township at large. The proposed drive-through car 
wash would be a positive addition to the Marsh Road corridor and allow for the redevelopment of a 
vacant property.  
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  A 
resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Attachments 
1. Special use permit application and attachments. 
2. SUP #23005 Approved Resolution  
 
 



Parcel #: 33-02-02-22-126-005
Address: 4876 Marsh

Owner: Kentucky Fried Chicken

7

NEWMAN ROAD

M
AR

SH
 R

OA
D

(100' WD. PUBLIC R/W)

(12
0' 

WD.
 PU

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ACCESS

WALL

ZONING: C-3

ZONING: C-2

54'±

10.0'

PVT. DRIVEWAY
EASEMENT L.38, P.38

PR
IVA

TE
 EA

SE
ME

NT
 FO

R

PU
BL

IC
 U

TIL
ITI

ES
 L.

38
, P

.38

PRIVATE EASEMENT FOR
PUBLIC UTILITIES L.38, P.3810

.0'

40.0'

50
.0'20

.0'

L.2309, P.841

Parcel #: 33-02-02-22-12
Address: 4886 Mars

Owner: TKG Meridian Towne 

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

CO
NC

RE
TE

CO
NC

RE
TE

ACCESS

CONCRETE

M&R=N89°57'44"W   285.43'

M&
R=

N0
0°

04
'08

"W
   1

46
.40

'

M&R=S89°54'31"W   210.00'

M&
R=

N2
7°

07
'23

"E
   2

99
.50

'

M&
R=

S0
0°

01
'48

"W
   3

00
.31

'

M&R=N89°51'11"E
79.95'

M&
R=

S0
0°

00
'00

"E
   9

71
.45

'

L.2023, P.036429

L.2023, P.036429

L.2
02

3, 
P.0

36
42

9

L.2023, P.03642927
.0'

27.0'27
.0'

27.0'

L.2023, P.036429

.0'

Parcel #: 33-02-02-22-126-026
Address: 4880 Marsh

Owner: Morris L Stoebner Trust

CONCRETE

ASPHALT

COVENANT DEED B.3240, P.830
Parcel #: 33-02-02-22-126-025

Address: 4880 Marsh
Owner: Morris L Stoebner Trust AREA: 127,059.65 Sq.Ft.

              2.92 Acres
ZONING: C-3

24"

18"

18"

18"

15"

15"

12"

18"

18"

24"

18" PINE
12"

12" PINE
12" PINE

24" PINE

18" PINE

18" PINE

C/L BRANCH 1 L.1934, P.817
C/L BRANCH 1 L.2308, P.994
C/L BRANCH 1 L.3055, P.611
C/L BRANCH 1 L.3055, P.613
C/L BRANCH 1 L.3056, P.627
L.2023, P.036429

C/L NEWMAN ROAD BRANCH OF
THE OKEMOS DRAIN L.1432, P.926

20.0'
L.1432, P.933
L.1432, P.935

L.2023, P.036429

L.1743, P.103
L.2023, P.036429

L.1432, P.933
L.1432, P.935

20
.0'

L.2309, P.841

L.2023, P.036429

Parcel #: 33-02-02-22-126-024
Address: 4886 Marsh

Owner: TKG Meridian Towne Centre LLC
ZONING: C-3

24" PINE 15" PINE

12" PINE

15" PINE

12"

12"

12"

20"

24" 18"

24" CLUSTER

12" PINE

15" PINE

BOTTOM
OF BANK

TOP  OF BANK

EXISTING BUILDING

±

C/L

12" PINE

ACCESS

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

M&R=S62°54'33"E   286.80'

M&R=N53°13'03"E

29.89'

15" PINE5 PINE

7

RO
ADOA

D
OA

D
D.

 PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

D.
 PU

BL
IC

 R
/W

10.0'
10 0'

PVT. DRIVEWAYAY
EASEMENT L.38, P.38

ASEMEN

PR
IVA

TE
 EA

SE
ME

NT
 FO

EN
T F

O

PU
BL

IC
 U

TIL
ITI

ES
 L.

38
, P

UB
LIC

 U
TIL

40.0'

50
.0'

50
020

.0'
20

0

L.2309, P.841L.2309, P.841ACCESSACCESS

M&
R=

N2
7°

07
'23

"E
   2

99
.50

'

R=
N2

7°
07

'23
"E

   2
99

L.2023, P.036429

2023, P.036429

L.2
02

3, 
P.0

36
42

9

20
23

, P
.03

64
29

COVENANT DEED B.3240, P.830OVENANT DEED B.3240, P.8
Parcel #: 33-02-02-22-126-025126-025

Address: 4880 Marshs: 4880
Owner: Morris L Stoebner TrustOwner: M AREA: 127,059.65 Sq.Ft.

              2.92 Acres
ZONING: C-3ZONING: C-

18"18"

18"18"

18"18"

15"15"

15"15"

12"12"

""

18" PINE8" PINE

L.1743.1743
L.2023.2023

L.2023, P.036429L.2023 P.036429

12" PINE2" PINE

PARCEL 1PARCEL 1

M&R=S62°54'33"E   286.80'

R=S62°54'33"E   286

85 FT FRONT YARD SETBACK

10
0 

FT
 F

RO
N

T 
YA

RD
 S

ET
BA

C
K

15 FT SIDE YARD SETBACK & LANDSCAPE BUFFER 

20
 F

T 
R.

O
.W

 B
U

FF
ER

26'

15
'

7'

9.
5'

9.
5'

9.
5'

14
'

25'

146.3'

10'

11'

25'

5'

5' 4'

10
'

20 FT R.O.W BUFFER

18
'

18
'

30
'

13'18'

4'
7'

15
.0

'

35'

7'

15 FT SIDE YARD SETBACK & LANDSCAPE BUFFER 

15
 F

T
 R

EA
R

 Y
A

R
D

 S
ET

BA
C

K
 &

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 B

U
FF

ER
 

9.3'

18
'

27
.6

'

38.7'

30
'

24'

285.4'

13
.5

'16
.5

'

60
.8

'

13'
6.5'

13'
6.5'

13'

13'

18
'

30'

198.7'

93
.9'

133.0' 39
.7

'

26
4.

8'
PROPOSED
CAR WASH

4,887 SF

4

10

4

10

12'

24'

76.7'
16.7'

114'

PROPOSED 6 FT MASONRY
VACUUM & TRASH ENCLOSURE
(SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS )

PROPOSED 6" CONCRETE
CURB (TYP.)

PROPOSED ROLLED
CURB (TYP.)

LIMIT OF PROPOSED
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED DIRECTIONAL
SIGN (TYP.)

PROPOSED BUILDING
DOOR (TYP.)

PROPOSED
OVERHEAD DOOR

PROPOSED 4" CONCRETE
SIDEWALK (TYP.)

PROPOSED VACUUM
STALL (24 TYP.)

THREE (3) PROPOSED
PAY STATIONS WITH
CANOPY ABOVE

PROPOSED CURB
TAPER(TYP.)

PROPOSED 6 FT MASONRY
VACUUM PRODUCER

ENCLOSURE

PROPOSED BAIL
OUT LANE

PROPOSED AUTOMATIC GATE WITH
TWO (2) INDUCTION LOOP PADS

PROPOSED 24,535 SF
6" CONCRETE

PAVEMENT

PROPOSED RIVER
ROCK (TYP.)PROPOSED 4" BLUE

STRIPING FOR ADA
PARKING STALLS(TYP.)

PROPOSED VAN ACCESSIBLE
ADA SPACE AND AISLE

WITH SIGNAGE (2 TYP.)

PROPOSED CURB
RAMP (TYP.)

PROPOSED FLUSH
CURB (TYP.)

LIMIT OF
PROPOSED CURB

LIMIT OF
PROPOSED CURB

LIMIT OF
PROPOSED CURB

LIMIT OF
PROPOSED CURB

PROPOSED
FREESTANDING SIGN

LIMIT OF PROPOSED
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED BIKE
RACK

PROPOSED FOUR (4)
EMPLOYEE SPACES

PROPOSED 4 FT
FOUNDATION
PLANTING

PROPOSED BUILDING
OVERHANG (TYP.)

EXISTING FULL MOVEMENT
DRIVEWAY TO REMAIN

EXISTING FULL MOVEMENT
DRIVEWAY TO REMAIN

EXISTING CROSS
ACCESS

EXISTING CROSS
ACCESS

PROPOSED SAW
CUT LINE

LIMIT OF PROPOSED
ASPHALT
PAVEMENT

PROPOSED
OVERHEAD DOOR

EXISTING CROSS
ACCESS TO REMAIN

LIMIT OF PROPOSED
PAVEMENT

PROPOSED GATE LOOP
(ONE PER LANE)

PROPOSED 4" WHITE
STRIPING FOR ALL NON-ADA

PARKING STALLS (TYP)

20
.8

'
PROPOSED 6" CONCRETE
TRANSFORMER PAD

5'

PROPOSED OVERHEAD
DOOR LOOP

GENERAL NOTES

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY AND FAMILIARIZE THEMSELVES
WITH THE EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS AND THE PROPOSED SCOPE
OF WORK (INCLUDING DIMENSIONS, LAYOUT, ETC.) PRIOR TO
INITIATING THE IMPROVEMENTS IDENTIFIED WITHIN THESE
DOCUMENTS. SHOULD ANY DISCREPANCY BE FOUND BETWEEN THE
EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS AND THE PROPOSED WORK THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN,
LLC. PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND
ENSURE THAT ALL REQUIRED APPROVALS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. COPIES OF ALL REQUIRED
PERMITS AND APPROVALS SHALL BE KEPT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES
DURING CONSTRUCTION.

3. ALL CONTRACTORS WILL, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY
LAW, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS STONEFIELD ENGINEERING &
DESIGN, LLC. AND IT'S SUB-CONSULTANTS FROM AND AGAINST ANY
DAMAGES AND LIABILITIES INCLUDING ATTORNEY'S FEES ARISING
OUT OF CLAIMS BY EMPLOYEES OF THE CONTRACTOR IN ADDITION
TO CLAIMS CONNECTED TO THE PROJECT AS A RESULT OF NOT
CARRYING THE PROPER INSURANCE FOR WORKERS COMPENSATION,
LIABILITY INSURANCE, AND LIMITS OF COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY INSURANCE.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DEVIATE FROM THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS IDENTIFIED WITHIN THIS PLAN SET UNLESS APPROVAL
IS PROVIDED IN WRITING BY STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN,
LLC.

5. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO DETERMINE THE MEANS AND
METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT PERFORM ANY WORK OR CAUSE
DISTURBANCE ON A PRIVATE PROPERTY NOT CONTROLLED BY THE
PERSON OR ENTITY WHO HAS AUTHORIZED THE WORK WITHOUT
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT FROM THE OWNER OF THE PRIVATE
PROPERTY.

7. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO RESTORE ANY DAMAGED OR
UNDERMINED STRUCTURE OR SITE FEATURE THAT IS IDENTIFIED TO
REMAIN ON THE PLAN SET. ALL REPAIRS SHALL USE NEW MATERIALS
TO RESTORE THE FEATURE TO ITS EXISTING CONDITION AT THE
CONTRACTORS EXPENSE.

8. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE THE APPROPRIATE SHOP
DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND OTHER REQUIRED SUBMITTALS
FOR REVIEW. STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN, LLC. WILL REVIEW
THE SUBMITTALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIGN INTENT AS
REFLECTED WITHIN THE PLAN SET.

9. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL IN
ACCORDANCE WITH MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL
DEVICES, LATEST EDITION.

10. THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PERFORM ALL WORK IN THE
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROPRIATE
GOVERNING AUTHORITY AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
PROCUREMENT OF STREET OPENING PERMITS.

11. THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO RETAIN AN OSHA CERTIFIED
SAFETY INSPECTOR TO BE PRESENT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING
CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.

12. SHOULD AN EMPLOYEE OF STONEFIELD ENGINEERING & DESIGN, LLC.
BE PRESENT ON SITE AT ANY TIME DURING CONSTRUCTION, IT DOES
NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF ANY OF THE RESPONSIBILITIES
AND REQUIREMENTS LISTED IN THE NOTES WITHIN THIS PLAN SET.

V
:\D

ET
\2

02
4\

D
ET

-2
40

39
5 

M
IS

T
ER

 C
A

R
 W

A
SH

 -
 4

88
0 

M
A

R
SH

 R
O

A
D

, M
ER

ID
IA

N
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
, M

I\C
A

D
D

\P
LO

T
\S

D
P-

03
-S

IT
E.

D
W

G

D
E

SC
R

IP
T

IO
N

SI
T

E
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
 P

LA
N

S

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 C

A
R

W
A

SH

IN
G

H
A

M
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, M

IC
H

IG
A

N
 4

88
64

 
M

E
R

ID
IA

N
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 

48
80

 M
A

R
SH

 R
O

A
D

 
P

A
R

C
E

L 
ID

: 3
3-

02
-0

2-
22

-1
26

-0
25

 &
 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-1

26
-0

26

LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

Bi
rm

in
gh

am
, M

I ·
  R

ut
he

rf
or

d,
 N

J ·
N

ew
 Y

or
k,

 N
Y

Sa
le

m
, M

A
 · 

 P
ri

nc
et

on
, N

J ·
T

am
pa

, F
L

w
w

w
.s

to
ne

fie
ld

en
g.

co
m

55
5 

S.
 O

ld
 W

oo
dw

ar
d 

A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 1

2L
, B

ir
m

in
gh

am
, M

I 4
80

09

Ph
on

e 
24

8.
24

7.
11

15

SITE BENCHMARK #300
ARROW IN SOUTHEAST FACE OF POWER POLE
ELEVATION = 855.81' (NAVD 88)

SITE BENCHMARK #301
ARROW IN NORTH SIDE OF CONCRETE
LIGHT POLE BASE
ELEVATION = 864.27' (NAVD 88)

SITE BENCHMARK #302
ARROW IN SOUTH SIDE OF CONCRETE
LIGHT POLE BASE
ELEVATION = 856.90' (NAVD 88)

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

0' 60'30'30'

1" = 30'

SITE PLAN

C-3

OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS
CODE SECTION REQUIRED PROPOSED

§ 86-755 DRIVE-IN CARWASH (AUTOMATIC): 24 VACUUM SPACES

1 SPACE PER 2 EMPLOYEE +4 EMPLOYEE SPACES

(4 EMP.)(1 SPACE/2 EMP.)= 2 SPACES 28 TOTAL SPACES

§ 86-756 90° PARKING: 10 FT X 18 FT

10 FT X 18 FT WITH 25 FT AISLE W/ 25 FT AISLE

§ 86-755 STACKING: 27 SPACES

15 SPACES PER WASHING BAY

§ 86-721.B LOADING: TO OCCUR

1 SPACE (12 FT X 25 FT) OFF-HOURS

§ 86-755 BICYCLE PARKING: 2 SPACES

2 SPACES

§ 86-758-1-B MAXIMUM SPACES IN A ROW: 10 SPACES

10 SPACES

SIGNAGE REQUIREMENTS
CODE SECTION REQUIRED PROPOSED

§ 86-687-2 PERMITTED SIGN: FREESTANDING

FREESTANDING SIGN

§ 86-687-2-B MAXIMUM HEIGHT: 16 FT

16 FT

§ 86-687-2-C MAXIMUM AREA: 38 SF

38 SF

§ 86-687-2-D MINIMUM PROPERTY LINE SETBACK: 38.7 FT

10 FT

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

SAWCUT LINE

PROPOSED CURB

PROPOSED FLUSH CURB

PROPOSED BUILDING

PROPOSED 6" CONCRETE

SETBACK LINE

PROPOSED BUILDING DOORS

PROPOSED SIGNS / BOLLARDS

PROPERTY LINE

LAND USE AND ZONING
PARCEL ID:33-02-02-22-126-025 & 33-02-02-22-126-026

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C-3)

PROPOSED USE

CAR WASH SPECIAL LAND USE(1)

ZONING REQUIREMENT REQUIRED PROPOSED

MINIMUM LOT AREA 10,000 SF 127,059 SF (2.92 AC)

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 100 FT 285.4 FT

MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE 70% (88,941 SF) 47% (60,257 SF)

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 35 FT 32 FT

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
(MARSH ROAD)

100 FT(2) 146.3 FT

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
(NEWMAN STREET)

85 FT (2) 264.8 FT

MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK 15 FT 60.8 FT

MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK 15 FT 198.7 FT

MINIMUM LANDSCAPE BUFFER 15 FT 15.0 FT

MINIMUM FOUNDATION PLANTING 4 FT 4 FT

MINIMUM R.O.W BUFFER (MARSH ROAD) 20 FT 9.3 FT (EN)

MINIMUM R.O.W BUFFER (NEWMAN ST) 20 FT 27.6 FT

(EN)

(1)

(2)

EXISTING NON-CONFORMITY

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED SPECIAL LAND USE, GRANTED ON MARCH 13, 2023
FOR TIDAL WAVE AUTO SPA, TO BE AMENDED

MEASURED FROM CENTER OF ROAD

PROPOSED RIVER ROCK

PROPOSED ASPHALT

PROPOSED ROLLED CURB

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP STANDARD CONSTRUCTION NOTES

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
MERIDIAN, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, OFFICE OF ENGINEERING
, PH# 517-853-4440,  A MINIMUM OF 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START
OF CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OR OF CONSTRUCTION
WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.

2. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE CURRENT
STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
MERIDIAN WHICH ARE INCLUDED AS PART OF THESE PLANS IN EFFECT
AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.

3. AFTER THE COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
OR CONSTRUCTION WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, THE
CONTRACTOR MUST REQUEST A FINAL INSPECTION.  ANY
PUNCHLIST ITEMS RESULTING FROM THE FINAL INSPECTION MUST BE
RESOLVED PRIOR TO FINAL RELEASE AND ACCEPTANCE.

4. THE EXISTING UTILITIES INDICATED ON THE PLANS ARE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AVAILABLE INFORMATION.  IT SHALL BE THE
CONTRACTOR’S OBLIGATION TO VERIFY THE EXACT LOCATION OF
ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, WHICH MIGHT AFFECT THIS JOB.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY “MISS DIG” 1-800-482-7171 AT
LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL AT ALL TIMES BE AWARE OF
INCONVENIENCE CAUSED TO THE ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS
AND THE GENERAL PUBLIC.  WHERE THE CONTRACTOR DOES NOT
REMEDY UNDUE INCONVENIENCES, THE MERIDIAN CHARTER
TOWNSHIP, UPON FOUR HOURS NOTICE, RESERVES THE RIGHT TO
PERFORM THE WORK AND DEDUCT THE COST THEREFORE FROM THE
MONEY DUE THE CONTRACTOR.

7. A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT
THE CONTRACTOR’S EXPENSE SHALL REPLACE ALL PROPERTY IRONS
AND MONUMENTS DISTURBED OR DESTROYED BY THE
CONTRACTOR’S OPERATIONS.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE OWNER AND TOWNSHIP ENGINEER A
COPY OF WRITTEN PERMISSION TO USE PRIVATE PROPERTY FOR
STORAGE OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS OR FOR HIS
CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.

9. TRENCH BACKFILL UNDER EXISTING OR PROPOSED ROADWAYS,
DRIVEWAYS, AND PARKING AREAS, SHALL BE SAND OR GRAVEL,
PLACED IN 12” LAYERS (MAXIMUM) AND CONSOLIDATED TO 95% OF
MAXIMUM DENSITY AS MEASURED BY MODIFIED PROCTOR UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

10. TREES AND SHRUBS ARE TO BE PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION
AND BORED WHERE NECESSARY.

11. EXISTING FENCES SHALL BE REMOVED AND RESTORED TO THEIR
ORIGINAL CONDITION OR BETTER WHERE IN CONFLICT WITH
CONSTRUCTION.

12. DRIVEWAYS, CULVERTS, DITCHES, DRAIN TILE, TILE FIELDS, DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES, ETC., THAT ARE DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR’S
OPERATIONS SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY RESTORED.

13. ALL ESTABLISHED LAWN AREAS DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR’S
OPERATIONS SHALL BE RESODDED WITH MATCHING SOD.  ALL
OTHER AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED.  SEEDING AND
MULCHING SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GENERAL
SPECIFICATIONS.

14. ALL DITCH SLOPES SHALL HAVE ESTABLISHED VEGETATION AND BE
PROTECTED FROM EROSION.

15. ALL UTILITY POLES IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO CONSTRUCTION SHALL
BE SUPPORTED IN A MANNER SATISFACTORY TO THE UTILITY
OWNER.

16. PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE OF THE PUBLIC UTILITY, ONE COMPLETE SET
OF ACCEPTABLE SEALED AS-BUILT MYLARS, MINIMUM 3 MILLS THICK,
AND ONE DISKETTE (AUTOCAD FORMAT) OF THE SITE PLANS SHALL
BE SUBMITTED TO THE OFFICE OF ENGINEERING.

17. ONSITE PARKING AND SANITARY FACILITIES SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR
CONSTRUCTION WORKERS.  THE FACILITIES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED
AND OPERATED (WITH MINIMAL IMPACT TO THE SURROUNDING
AREA) TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE TOWNSHIP.

LOT COMBINATION IS PLANNED TO
OCCUR AT A LATER STAGE OF THE

DEVELOPMENT PROCESS, ENSURING THAT
ALL PARCELS ARE CONSOLIDATED AS

NEEDED FOR THE PROJECT

PROPOSED 4" SIDEWALK CONCRETE



1

Keith Chapman

From: Brian Shorkey
Sent: Wednesday, April 23, 2025 8:20 AM
To: Keith Chapman
Subject: FW: [EXT] April 14 Planning Commission Packet - PFAS Clarification 

 
 

Brian J. Shorkey, AICP 
Principal Planner 
shorkey@meridian.mi.us 
W 517.853.4576 
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864 
meridian.mi.us 

 

From: Rachel Wolfe <rwolfe@mistercarwash.com>  
Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2025 8:48 AM 
To: Brian Shorkey <shorkey@meridian.mi.us> 
Cc: Erin McMachen <emcmachen@stonefieldeng.com> 
Subject: Re: [EXT] April 14 Planning Commission Packet - PFAS Clarification  
 

Good morning Brian, 

It was a pleasure meeting you during Monday’s meeting. Thank you again for your support with the presentation to 
the board—it was greatly appreciated. 

There were several questions raised regarding PFAS, so I wanted to provide some additional context and 
clarification ahead of the second reading. 

I followed up with the MCW Chemical Development Department, who originally provided the statement that 
“MCW does not intentionally add PFAS to our chemistry blend.” I was able to get some further clarification on 
what “intentionally” means in this context, and I’d like to pass that along to help address the concerns raised. 

To be clear—PFAS-containing ingredients are internally banned from use in any of our products, and there are no 
risks of PFAS being generated during our processes. 

The challenge lies in the fact that there is no practical minimum reporting quantity for PFAS/PFOAS. Without 
performing extensive testing on every product, trace levels could potentially appear due to outside contaminants 
such as PTFE thread tape (commonly used in residential and industrial plumbing) or municipal water sources that 
do not actively test for PFAS. Additionally, while we do not use any PFAS materials at our facilities, it’s possible 
that a customer vehicle could introduce contaminants that, while outside of our control, might still register in 
wastewater testing. 

This makes it difficult to give a clean, definitive answer, but I hope this additional detail helps clarify some of the 
concerns that were raised during the meeting. 

Would you mind forwarding this to the staff for their review? 

Thank you 



2

 
 

Rachel Wolfe, MBA 

Project Manager, Development 

Mister Car Wash 

C: 412.500.1142 

222 E 5th Street · Tucson · AZ 85705 

  

From: Brian Shorkey <shorkey@meridian.mi.us> 
Sent: Friday, April 11, 2025 2:18 PM 
Subject: [EXT] April 14 Planning Commission Packet  
  

**CAUTION: EXTERNAL EMAIL**  
Good afternoon, 
  
I’m glad to let you know that the packet for Monday night’s Planning Commission meeting is posted 
online. It can be found on our Township website at https://www.meridian.mi.us/government/boards-
and-commissions/agendas-packets-and-minutes/-folder-3751#docan5601_5944_42 
  
Let me know if you have any issues accessing the packet and/or if you have any questions. Otherwise, 
we’ll see you Monday night at 6:30 PM. 
  
Thanks, 
  
  

Brian J. Shorkey, AICP 
Principal Planner 
shorkey@meridian.mi.us 
W 517.853.4576 
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864 
meridian.mi.us 

  

 You don't often get email from shorkey@meridian.mi.us. Learn why this is important   



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

To:  Planning Commission 
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  April 28, 2025 
 
Re: Parking Landscaping Updates 
 
Staff asked the Planning Commission what part of the Parking Ordinance they would like to work 
on after the Off-Street parking amendments were approved. The Planning Commission informed 
Staff that they would like to start reviewing the parking landscaping ordinance.  
 
Staff is now introducing Sec. 86-758 – Landscaping, for discussion. Staff have done some work on 
potential updates and is now providing the current ordinance to the Planning Commission for their 
review and future comments. 
 
We look forward to providing a draft ordinance to the Planning Commission in the future. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Sec. 86-758 – Landscaping  
 



(1) 

a. 

b. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

c. 

1. 

2. 

d. 

e. 

(2) 

Charter Township of Meridian
Thursday, April 24, 2025

Chapter 86. Zoning

ARTICLE VIII. Off-Street Parking and Loading

DIVISION 2. Off-Street Parking

§ 86-758. Landscaping.

[Code 1974, § 85-1.13; Ord. No. 2008-10, 7-20-2008]
In addition to any landscaping required in any particular district, all parking areas shall be landscaped in
accordance with the following provisions:

Interior landscaping. Interior landscaping shall be installed and designed to control traffic, provide
shade, screen views into and within vehicular use areas, and separate the parking, circulation, and
service areas, in accordance with the following provisions:

Landscaped islands or medians, having a minimum width of 10 feet, shall be provided to
separate parking bays from internal access drives.

Landscaped areas shall be provided throughout the parking area in the amount of 200 square
feet for each 10 parking spaces, subject to the following:

The nearest point of any parking space shall not be located further than 65 feet from the
edge of a landscaped area.

No landscaped area shall have a dimension less than 10 feet nor an area less than 200
square feet.

The area in excess of the ten-foot minimum width of medians separating parking bays
from internal access drives may be applied to the required parking lot landscaping area.

Required perimeter landscaped buffers shall not be applied to the required parking lot
landscaping area.

A minimum of two canopy trees shall be provided for every 10 parking spaces, meeting the
following standards:

Canopy trees shall be a minimum of two inches in caliper at time of planting.

Conifer trees shall be a minimum of eight feet in height at time of planting.

A minimum of 50% of each landscaped area, at time of planting, shall be planted with grass,
ground cover, shrubs, or other living vegetation.

Vehicles shall not be permitted to extend into landscaped areas. Landscaped areas shall be
protected from encroachment by the use of curbing, wheel stops, or similar means.

Building perimeter landscaping. Parking areas and driveways shall be separated from the exterior
wall of a building, exclusive of pedestrian entrance ways or loading areas, by a landscaped planting

4/24/25, 1:21 PM Charter Township of Meridian Landscaping.

https://ecode360.com/print/ME3541?guid=28784062 1/2

https://ecode360.com/print/28784063#28784063
https://ecode360.com/print/28784064#28784064
https://ecode360.com/print/28784065#28784065
https://ecode360.com/print/28784066#28784066
https://ecode360.com/print/28784067#28784067
https://ecode360.com/print/28784068#28784068
https://ecode360.com/print/28784069#28784069
https://ecode360.com/print/28784070#28784070
https://ecode360.com/print/28784071#28784071
https://ecode360.com/print/28784072#28784072
https://ecode360.com/print/28784073#28784073
https://ecode360.com/print/28784074#28784074
https://ecode360.com/print/28784075#28784075


(3) 

(4) 

area of at least four feet in width. A minimum of 50% of this landscaped area, at time of planting,
shall be planted with grass, ground cover, shrubs, or other living vegetation.

Maintenance of landscaping. All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy condition and
kept free of refuse and debris. Dead, diseased, or missing vegetation shall be replaced within 30
days, or as soon as weather permits.

Snow storage. To protect vegetation, interior landscaped islands less than 20 feet in each
dimension shall not be used for snow storage.

4/24/25, 1:21 PM Charter Township of Meridian Landscaping.

https://ecode360.com/print/ME3541?guid=28784062 2/2

https://ecode360.com/print/28784076#28784076
https://ecode360.com/print/28784077#28784077


 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 
 
 
To:  Members of Planning Commission 
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, AICP, Principal Planner 
 
Date:  April 28, 2025 
 
Re: Project Report 
 
As of April 28, 2025, the following projects are under construction, under site plan review, or have been submitted as a new 
application (Changes since the last report are shown in bold): 
 
Under Construction 

Name   Location  Date Approved  Description  Status 
1. Grand Reserve  Central Park Drive March 6, 2024  115 SFR Homes Under Construction 

2. Sanctuary II  North of Robins Way March 15, 2022 (Plat) 7 SFR Homes  Under construction 

3. Newton Pointe  6276 Newton Road February 24, 2022 Mixed Use w/  Phase 2 
105 MFR & 14 SFR Under construction 

4. Silverleaf Phase 1 West Bennett Road June 26, 2024  25 SFR   Under construction 

5. Knob Hill Apartments 2300 Knob Hill Drive N/A   Reconstruction of  Under construction 
Apartment buildings  

6. Starbucks  2731 W. Grand River October 28, 2024 New Starbucks  Under construction 

7. Puff Puff Tobacco 4686 Marsh Road N/A   New Retail  Under construction 

8. Meijer   2055 Grand River March 6, 2025  New Gas Canopy Under construction 

9. Art Unlimited  1839 Grand River N/A   Relocated Retail Under construction 

Under Site Plan Review 
Name   Location  Date Approved  Description  Status 

1. Haslett Village  SW Corner of Haslett July 26, 2019     Site Plan Phase 1  
Road and Marsh Road (MUPUD)  290 MFR  Approved 4/22/2025 



 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

2. Elevation Phase 4 North of Jolly Road, N/A   MUPUD Amendment Under Site Plan review  
West of Jolly Oak       Awaiting revisions  

New Applications 
Name   Location  Description    Status 

1. New Coffee Shop Hamilton Road  New Business    Under building review 

2. Okemos Local  
Investments  4360 Hagadorn  Adult Use Marihuana   Awaiting Site Plan 

3. Okemos Gateway 1614 W. Grand River Adult Use Marihuana   Awaiting Site Plan 

4. Panda Express  4990 Marsh Road Drive-Through Restarurant  Awaiting Site Plan 

5. Montessori Radmoor 2745 Mount Hope 1,276 sf Expansion   Minor SUP Amendment 

6. New Restaurant 5951 Marsh Road Takeout Restaurant   Under building review 

7. Mr. Car Wash  4880 Marsh Road New Car Wash    PC SUP Decision 4/28/2025 




